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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Lutherville Historic District is located north of the Baltimore
Beltway (Interstate 695), west of York Road, south of Ridgely
Road and east of Riderwood-Lutherville Drive.

The district is an irregularly shaped urban entity bounded by
the streets and lot lines hereinafter cited. The district is
bounded on the south by the north side of I-695, the Baltimore
Beltway, by the northwest side of Bellona Avenue, by the south
side of Lincoln Avenue, by the southeast and east lot lines on
the southeast side of Bellona Avenue, by the south side of
Seminary Avenue, by the east side of the lot of the Chapel of

- the Redeemer and the other east lot lines on the east side of
Bellona Avenue, by the south side of Bellona Avenue, by the east
lot lines on the east side of North Avenue, by the north side of
Middle Avenue, by the east. side of Division Avenue, by the north
side of North Avenue, by the east side of Franke Avenue, by the
northeast side of Division Avenue, by the north side of Ridgely
Road and by the east side of Riderwood-Lutherville Drive.

Founded in 1855, Lutherville began as a mid-nineteenth-century
summer resort and suburb of Baltimore City. One-family dwell-
ings on large lots characterize the community, and tree-lined
streets, laid out on a grid pattern, still lend it a quiet,
rural atmosphere. Most of the structures pre-date World War I,
although ranch-type and "colonial" houses have appeared in the
past three decades. The new construction, so far, has not al-
tered or infringed upon the nineteenth-century character of the
district. - )

Just ‘east of the western boundary of Lutherville, along Rider-
wood-Lutherville Drive, run the tracks of the Pennsylvania Rail-
‘road. The completion of the railroad from Baltimore north to
Lutherville in the mid-1850's spurred- development of the area

by providing easy access to the city.

Eighty structures of architectural merit stand in Lutherville.
Most of these are houses, but there are a few churches and a
stone railroad station.

The following examples typify the character of Lutherville:

Oak Grove, 313 Morris Avenue (1852)

This house, an example of the Gothic Revival, was built as his
own residence by the founder of Lutherville, and the founder of
Female Seminary - Dr. J.G. Morris. It began as a symmetrical
house, "T" shaped in plan, and was gradually expanded as the
Morris family grew. The first addition, connected directly to
the original house, was- a two-story wing extending to the south.
A summer kitchen, added later to the north, was connected by a
breezeway, now enclosed.

(See Continuation Sheet)
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)4}510 Bellona Avenué and a tract house at 1603 Front Avenue.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Lutherville, Maryland, is a nineteenth century ,
munity that has retajned its original character w wing
at a moderate pace. / The village still conveys the rural atmos-
phere of its original plan-as seéen in its large lots and tree
shaded streets.)?

Architecturally, Lutherville aptly expresses the rationale for
an historic district: a geographical entity comprised of struc-
tures that individually have limited architectural merit but

express a unity of scale and urban design when viewed ensemble.

The village contains examples ﬁ;/{ge dominant domestic American
architectural styles. The GotHic Revival in the tradition of
Andrew Jackson Downing and Calvert Vaux is represented in .sever:
al dwellings among which is 313 Morris Avenue. Other styles
include the ocqgggn-mode, 1708 Kurtz Avenue, the Secong@ Empire
Revival with its characteristic Mansard roof, at 308 Morris
Avenue, Shinglg Style (St. Paul's Lutheran Church), the -Queen
Anne style, at 200 Morris Avenue, and the Georgian Revival, at
1611 Francke Avenue. The genre architecture of the twentieth
century is present in severalburgaloid style houses such as

n 1852 twg/iutheran clergymen//Dr. John Goftlieb Mgép{g and
Dr. Benjamin Kurtz, and a Lutheran layman, Charles gustus
Morris ,/founded the village and named it after Martin Luther.
They laid out the streets in a grid pattern that radiated from
the lot set aside for the Lutheran Church.”

gymen. Morris Avenue bears the name of Dr. Morris; Kurtz Avenue
for Dr. Kurtz. Melanchthon Avenue was named for Philip Melanch-
thon, a sixteenth-century reformer who assisted Luther. August
Hermann Francke, an early nineteenth century German educator,
was remembered on Francke Avenue.

Dr. Morris planned the village as a residential setting for the
Lutherville Female Seminary, a women's c¢ollegé, that hé founded

The founders named the streets in the village for Lutheran cler-|

in 1853, At that time it was one of the few advanced education-
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7. DESCRIPTION continued

The original house, constructed of stone and sheathed in narrow,
flush, vertical siding, indicates the mid-nineteenth-century in-
terest in the Gothic Revival style as being suitable for the
residence of a clergyman.

Its front (west) facade is symmetrical with a central gable, low-
er than the main roof ridge, flanked by gabled dormer windows
which extend below the eaves of the main roof and project beyond
the walls with the window sills supported on brackets with pen-
dants. The dormers have pairs of three-light casement sash
similar to the casements of the central gable which latter open
inward.

| Openwork scalloped vergeboards, flush with the facia boards of
the rakes, ornament the front central gable with its apex finial,
the dormer-gables and the end-gables of the side elevations. A
pair of corbeled cap chimneys at the roof ridge flank the central
gable.

At the first floor level pairs of elongated casements, or French
doors, flank the front (west) entry with its paneled, double
door. The sidelights, as do the windows, have full length, pan-
eled shutters. All open onto the one-story front porch, the
length of the main house. The shed roof of the porch is support-
ed on champhered columns which have corner brackets at the eave
facia. The columns flanking the front steps are doubled with
an "X" replacing the center brackets.

The south elevation of the main house has an oriel-type bay win-
dow with an elongated pair of casements being flanked by similar
single casements at each angled elevation. Above a moulded mul-
lion, square quatrefoil panels repeat the casement mullion spac-
ing. At the second floor level a typical casement window with
louvre blinds has above it a cast iron roundel attic vent seen
in the apexes of the highest gables including the east facade
with its large single gable having one second floor window and

a low, stair landing, window above a simplified, shortened ver-
sion of the front porch. Two windows with casements flank the
sidelighted, double door entrance, which opens nearly onto grade.

This rear (east) facade, now the main entrance from the drive-
way, is even more noticeably asymmetrical with the addition of
the two-story, gabled wing to the south and is characterized at
the original front (west) facade with an off-center attic gable,
perpendicular to the main roof slope, over the two window bays
balanced by a shed roof dormer which extends well below the
eaves. The windows of this wing are double hung, sliding sash

(1 of 9 Continuation Sheets)
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7. DESCRIPTION continued

REGISTER

with a wide center muntin imitating gdsements of the older
house. Louvre blinds are hung awkwardly at the second floor wing
windows within the gable, while paneled shutters are hung at the
first floor windows.

The opposite wing is a two-story block with a shallow sloped shed
roof which provides a full second floor area. The highly archi-
tectural west facade modillioned cornice and the two vertical
bays suggest a misplaced urban, rowhouse. Six-over-six sash fill
the window openings.

In plan there are two rooms, the parlour and dining room, on
either side of the central hall at the front(west) of the origi-
nal house. The hall extends to the rear (east) entrance between
the kitchen and stair hall in the stem of the "T" shape.

Similar to several Gothic Revival houses in this region, the in-
terior woodwork is of simplified classic revival detail. All
the mantels are Greek-Revival in character with those of the
first floor being of marble with flat, unmoulded pilasters sup-
porting unmoulded frieze sections and mantel shelves. At the
second floor of the main house fine "dog earred" crossette
architrave mantelpieces front the chimney breasts. The stair-
case has turned balusters, turned newels and moulded rail.

Octagon House, 1708 Kurtz Avenue (1856)

Done in what Marcus Wiffen has dubbed "the octagon mode," this
is the only+eXample of @ style of architecture that gained wide
currency throughout t United States in the mid-nineteenth cen-
tury. Dr. Owen S. FgWler, a Hudson River phrenologist promoted
the style in A Home for All (1854) and in an article in the pop-
ular Godey's Magazine & Ladies Book (1855). The Lutherville oc-

tagon followed the plans published in the magazine.

The eight-sided house was constructed of "grout or gravel" walls,
another of Dr. Fowler's ideas. All the walls in the house were
cast in place out of an early form of concrete consisting of mud
with lime, to hold it together, and rocks. As a result the walls
are eighteen inches thick.

The octagon house has a low-pitched hipped roof. The windows
have the elongated proportions characteristic of Greek Revival
style with four-over-four lights at the second floor and four-
over-six lights at the first floor.

(2 of 9 Continuation Sheets)
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Originally the house had an octagonal belvedere and a two-story
veranda that encircled the entire house. A mansard roof existed
on Octagon House c. 1911, but this may have been an alteration
of a still earlier roof. These details have all disappeared.
The house had deteriorated considerably before 1947 when the cur-
rent (1972) owners renovated the building. '

311 West Seminary Avenue (1863)

This house with its German siding is the best preserved example
of the Second Empire Revival style in Lutherville. The house is
characterized by the belvedere, which has pairs of four light
arched windows on each side and a modillioned cornice supporting
a pyramidal roof with its ornamental finial, on top of the slighf
ly ogee curved mansard roof still trimmed with moulded corner
boards set with fan corner decorations at the joint with the
upper moulded cornice's frieze board. A decorative band of
pointed shingles is set between regular shingle coursing on each
face of the slate roof with its dormers. The dormers, two on
the three bay front facade and one on each of two bay side fa-
cades as well as on the back slope of the roof, have elaborately
scrolled trim with raised, applied decoration at the sill and
moulded lintels over the segmentally arched heads. The eaves of
the main roof slope are further ornamented with scroll modillions
supporting the flared roof's moulded cornice. Finally regarding
the roof, there are two corbeled cap chimneys set somewhat be-
tween the belvedere. An end chimney of similar design is seen

_ at the rear (east) of the original back two-story wing.

A one-story veranda with square Tuscan-type columns supporting
its corniced eaves wraps around the front (west) facade and
sides of the house. It is enclosed on the south side for a con-
servatory or solarium. The fenestration of the glazing, doors
and wainscot-high paneling suggests that it is an early addition;

Typically, the windows of the house, including the dormers, have
six-over-six light sash set into the architrave trimmed openings;
Those of the first floor, flanking the sidelighted and transomed
front door with its six heavily moulded panels, have six-over-
nine light sash. The first floor windows are hung with paneled
shutters with interesting sets of hardware, while the second
floor windows are hung with louvered blinds.

The two-story, hipped roof wing extends to the rear of the main
structure of the house. Its cornice line is even with that of
the lower cornice of the main roof. With its several later ad-
ditions, it is partially connected to two small, square out-

(3 of 9 Continuation Sheets)
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7. DESCRIPTION continued

buildings with pyramidal roofs topped by turned finials. The
buildings, nearly two stories high under their roofs, were prob-
ably originally a dairy and smoke house originally located at
each corner of the east facade of the rear (east) wing.

Sitting on a tract of land larger than the average town lot, out-
side the original boundaries of the 1854 Lutherville plat, the
grounds are well established with mature trees. The house and
grounds present a picture of a mearly complete domestic scene
depicting an affluent 1860's country house.

| St. Paul's Evangelical Lutheran Church, Kurtz and Melanchton
Avenues (1898-1899)

St. Paul's, begun October 1, 1898, and dedicated May 21, 1899,
was built on the original block set aside by Dr. John G. Morris
for the Lutheran Church in the initial plat of Lutherville
(1854) . The present (1972) church when built replaced a simple,
Gothic Revival board and batten structure (1856) which had four
bays of pointed arch nave windows on each side and a central
open-belfry steeple set at the front (west) gable-end which pro-
vided a narthex entrance at its base.

The present St. Paul's is a superb example of the Shingle Style
combined with Gothic forms. Basically a Latin cross in plan, it
is extended to the south with the addition of a school room which
can be used for overflow seating space. Each front (west) and

. rear (east) gable with its nave windows are characterized by the
use of an enlarged open ended trefoil motif suggesting boarding,
though with solid soffits all shingled with square-butt shingles|
The gables are sheathed with the same shingles, though set with
a band of several courses of decoratively cut semi-hexagonal-
butt shingles. S

At each gable a circular window with quatrefoil metal mutins is
set at the apex above a large ogee arched window with its arch
projecting into the shingling. Below the arched opening filled
with typical Gothic leaded, marbleized and colored glass in non-
religious motives are three windows separated by wide mullions.
Each with double-hung sash has a trefoil arch in the upper sash.
Flanking the large window unit are tallk narrow double-hung sash
‘which have smaller ogee arches projecting into the shingled
gables. Their flat trim, like that of the large central windows
is set with a crocket finial at the topmost point.

Between the window openings below the gable shingles is narrow
horizontal clapboarding. This walling and the window sills are

(4 of 9 Continuation Sheets)
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&
carried on a high random cours 9 ndation slightly bat-
tered and set at the front (south facade with cellar windows

which provide an interesting crenelation at grade.

The north and south wings each with a hip roof, provide continued
clapboarding and stone work around the building. The double-hung
sash windows of the wings are set on the high stone foundation
and under the eaves. The round altar window, centered on the

north elevation and flanked by pairs of windows, defines the apse
end. Similar windows light the south wing.

Completing the southwest facade is the belfry set within the angl
of the main structure and south wing. The stone foundation of
the main front gable projects slightly to provide a base for the
tower, though it is interrupted at each side for double entry
doors opening into the tower narthex. The doors, such as the ex-
terior sacristry door, are set with pointed arch panels filled
with diagonal boarding all set under a pointed arch transom with
foliate leaded glass. Over each doorway of each face, reached
by simple wooden steps, are hoods which reflect the large gables.
The hoods, with similar shingled verges and soffits, are cut to
fit the arched transom. Their eaves extend below the flat ceil-
ings at the arches' imposts which are supported by two large
solid brackets, with relief carving, at each side of the door-
ways.

The tower or belfry, with typical corner boards with moulded
bases, has similar horizontal clapboarding slightly higher than
the level of the clapboarding of the main structure, which at the
front facade, receives the extended eaves of the main gable sup-
ported by a typical scrolled bracket. Above the clapboarding
the square tower is shingled with regular butt shingles, although
the bottom course is scalloped and therefore similar to the bot-
tom course of each door hood. Circular windows with quatrefoil
metal muntins are set in the shingled area of the outside faces
of the tower. This section receives a pyramidal hip roof sup-
ported by shingled square corner piers providing an open belfry
set with simple railings.

The nave, entered through the corner tower narthex has semicir-
cular ranges of pews somewhat perpendicular to the rectangular
space with its exposed truss ceiling. St. Paul's golden oak in-
terior is more anti-architecture by presenting an unusual arrange
ment of the space. It would be expected that the gable windows
would provide an altar backdrop instead of the altar being
placed within the north wing and flanked by the sacristy and the

L)

organ pipe chamber. The ceiling of the apse extends into its

(5 of 9 Continuation Sheets)
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S
attic space and further confuse ssed ceiling treatment

of the nave.

The overflow/educational room is divided from the nave by a wood-
en partition which can be rolled up into a housing over the open-
ings.

302 North Avenue (1879)

A delightful small residence of Gothic Revival character, this

' house reflects the best of the Andrew Jackson Downing and Calvert
Vaux cottage designs presenting an example of the domestic use of
board and batten siding.

The symmetrical front (south) facade is characterized by the pair
of steeply pitched, approximately 709, attic gables set at right
angles to the main roof ridge (east/west). Each encloses an
arched attic window and extends below the flat heads of the sec~-
ond floor windows. The attic windows, similar to those of the
first and second floor windows, have wide, flat sectioned, taper-
ed trim which is notched near the sills and earred at the heads
to receive the plain lintel trim. The sash is typically two over
two.

A one-story shed roof front porch spans the south facade at the
first floor level with its central transomed door and flanking
windows under each bay of each gable. The porch is supported on
square champhered columns with simple, unmoulded eaves, like the
front and side gables.

At the rear (north) a two-story wing with its roof ridge (north/
south) the same height and perpendicular to the main roof ridge
- extends beyond the northwest corner. Its second floor windows
are set directly under the eaves. : :

In plan the house is basically one room deep with the front ;
(south) door opening directly into a large dining room containing
a narrow stairway to the second floor. To the west is a parlour
with three exposures. The dining room opens into the rear (north
kitchen wing surrounded by the semi-enclosed, one-story summer
kitchen which wraps around two sides of the wing. The second
floor is similarly arranged to accommodate the bedrooms. The in-
terior door and window trim is typified by flat, beaded boards
mitered at the corners.

(6 of 9 Continuation Sheets)
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Johnson Bowie House, 1611 Franke Avenue (1899)

Purchased by the Bowie family in 1912, this house, like its
neighbor 1603 Franke Avenue, is an example of Georgian Revival
style. A one-story veranda with Tuscan columns wraps around the
north elevation and the near symmetrical west, front facade. A
pediment with a shingled tympanum over the front (west) steps
defines the entrance, a side-lighted door under an elliptically
arched transom filled with leaded colored glass. Typical one-

' over-one sash are in the double parlour windows under a similar
elliptical arch and a bowed library bay with three windows flank
the entry.

At the second floor level, west facade, a central bowed bay with

triple windows projects onto the ridge of the veranda pediment

and is flanked by double windows having muntins in the top half
of the upper sash forming "Gothick" tracery.

A curved balcony, which caps the second floor bowed windows, has
turned balusters, finialed newels and "goose necked" railing. It
fronts a large, central dormer with angled side windows flanking
an oversized central window all under a pediment which repeats
the veranda pediment with a similar shingled tympanum. - Continu-
ing the three, vertical bay spacing of the front (west) facade,
the central dormer and balcony is flanked by small hip roof dor-
mers reflecting the main hip roof of the house and the hip roofs
of the side and rear (east) elevation dormers with three windows
each. Corbeled brick chimney caps further punctuate the roof
profile.

A two-story, semi-octagonal hip roof bay, with one window open-
ing on each of the three sides at each floor, stops the veranda.
Behind the veranda at the first floor level there are two win-
dows with similar windows at the second floor level, all with
‘louvre blinds, typically extending to the deep frieze space of
the moulded cornice. ' '

The squareness of the south facade is characterized by the Palla-
dian stair landing window with leaded, colored glass in the
double-hung sash and somewhat centrally located between the four |
vertical bays of the first and second floor windows. A one-

story porch extends across the rear (east) of the house and has
a multiple louvre jalousie set in one bay between square Tuscan.
columns. Narrow clapboard siding sheaths the house and contrasts
with the wide, molded trim of the doors and windows.

(7 of 9 Continuation Sheets)
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7. DESCRIPTION continued

L ¥ticularly interesting in
that it retains most of its origi period (1899) woodwork. The
parlor and dining room have mantelpieces with tiled facias. The

mantels are exaggerated adaptations of authentic Georgian details
A handsome golden oak staircase, which rises several steps to the
first landing, turns and rises to the landing under the Palladian
window, and then turns to reach the second floor. The stair has

heavy newels and railings which unit forms part of a hall nook

at the foot of the stairs around the hall fireplace. The golden

oak interior is carried into the library with its built-in,

- glazed door bookcases flanklng an enriched mantelpiece.

A large water tank survives within an attic room. When in use
it was filled by a water pump, still located on the rear (east)
porch, and originally provided the domestic water supply by
gravity flow.

8. SIGNIFICANCE continued

al institutions for women in the area. He financed the college
through the sale of the 118 lots in Lutherville. The Seminary
flourished through the opening decade of the twentieth century.
A fire in 1911 marked the beginning of its gradual decline.

The construction of the railroad station on Front Street (1856)
was crucial to the development of Lutherville because it provided
easy access to Baltimore. The railroad allowed Lutherville res-
idents to commute to jobs in the city. The village never experi-
enced commercial development. The few stores that did exist werej}
located in private homes on Front Street.

The railroad brought city residents to Lutherville in the summer
to escape the heat. Landon House, a large stone structure on
Melanchthon Avenue, was a fashionable boarding house which served
the summer residents.

Thomas Dixon, one of the most outstanding mid-nineteenth century
Baltimore County architects, designed two of the major buildings
in Lutherville: the railroad station (1856) and the Lutherville
Female Seminary (1853).

Baltimore County chose Dixon as the architect of their courthouse
in Towson (1854), a stone Greek Revival structure. Dixon's major
commission for the County consisted of a series of plans for
schools executed in the late 1850's. His most outstanding work

(8 of 9 Continuation Sheets)
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8. SIGNIFICANCE continued

in Baltimore City is the Mount Vernon Place United Methodist
Church (1870; National Register of Historic Places).

Lutherville has survived two assaults by highway planners, one
in the first decade of the twentieth century and one in the
fourth. Both times local residents have repulsed the attacks,
illustrating the long-standing interest of Lutherville residents
in preserving the character of their community. The appreciation
of this village dates back to 1881 when J. Thomas Scharf, the
dean of historians of Maryland said: "Lutherville is an exceed-
ingly handsome town . . . ."1

IJ. Thomas Scharf, History of Baltimore City and County
from the Earliest Period to the Present Day: . ... (Philadelphia,
1881).

9. BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES continued
Towson, Maryland.

Glaab, Charles N.'and Brown, A. Theodore. A History of Urban
America. New York: Macmillan, 1967.

Scharf, J. Thomas. History of Baltimore City and County from
the Earliest Period to the Present Day: . . . . Phila-
delphia: - Louis H. Everts, 188l.

'Sunday Sun Magazine (Baltimore), March 29, 1964.

The Victorian Society in America, Baltimore Chapter. "The Vic-
torian Society Walking Tour of Lutherville, Sunday, April
16, 1972." Mimeographed brochure. Files of the Mary-
land Historical Trust, Annapolis, Maryland. .
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